
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

LUDINGTON BOARD OF EDUCATION - LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT
809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan 49431 – Phone 231-845-7303

This is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District’s business and is not
to be considered a public community meeting.  There is a time for public participation during the meeting as indicated on
the agenda.

Mission: The Ludington Area School District, in partnership with parents and community, will educate and empower
students to adapt and succeed in their future.

MEETING: Public Budget Hearing & Regular Meeting
DATE: June 20, 2022
TIME: 6:00 p.m.
PLACE: Ludington Area Schools Administration Office, 809 E Tinkham Ave, Ludington, Michigan

BUDGET HEARING
1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL

( ) Steve Carlson    ( ) Josh Snyder ( ) Bret Autrey ( ) Mike Nagle  ( )Stephanie Reed  ( ) Leona Ashley ( ) Scott Foster

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. AGENDA MODIFICATION
4. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION: Review Board Policy 0167.3: Public Participation at Board Meetings
5. PUBLIC  HEARING

a. Final Budget Amendment for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022
b. Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 (2022/2023)
c. Review of Property Tax Millage Rate

6. ADJOURNMENT OF PUBLIC HEARING
REGULAR MEETING

7. CALL TO ORDER
8. SPECIAL PRESENTATION

a. Chief Tim Kozal, Ludington Police Department
b. Katie Eisinger, Principal - Ludington Elementary School Updates

9. AGENDA MODIFICATION
10. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
11. CONSENT AGENDA

a. Ratification of Bill Payment - Per Summary Dated June 20, 2022
b. Approval of Minutes – Regular & Closed Meetings May 16, 2022
c. Annual Summer Tax Resolution 2023
d. Annual Michigan High School Athletic Association Membership Resolution 2022/2023
e. MASB Membership Renewal 2022/2023

f. Tuition Rate (Section 6 Non-Resident Students) 2022/2023

g. Hiring Approvals & Resignation Acceptances
12. BOARD COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Finance Committee Report June 15, 2022
b. Building & Site Committee Report June 15, 2022
c. Personnel/Policy Committee Report June 17, 2022

13. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT and COMMENTS
a. Report on Bullying 2021-2022 School Year
b. Letter from Dr. Jeffrey at WSESD

Page 1 of 12



14. DISCUSSION ITEMS
a. Waiver & Consent LASD ~ Uncollectible Personal Property Tax
b. Elementary Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #26
c. Administrative Contract Approval Greg Pscodna, Athletic Director
d. Administrative Contract Approval Laura Jacobs, Director of Business Services
e. Teacher Contract Patrick Ruszkowski
f. Shoreline Cycling Club ~ Singletrack Showdown Race Approval
g. Bids for Replacing Gas Storage Tanks
h. Bids for Fixing CBO Roof
i. Bus Purchases
j. Approval for Purchase of iPad Packages & Cases
k. Purchase of Replacement VFD’s
l. EnviroClean Contract Renewal
m. Bids for Softball Field Work Diamond #3 Oriole Field
n. Administrative & Central Office, Non-Union Contracts 2022/2023
o. West Shore Educational Service District Parent Advisory Committee Appointment 2022/2023

15. ACTION ITEMS
a. Waiver & Consent LASD ~ Uncollectible Personal Property Tax Resolution
b. Elementary Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #26
c. Administrative Contract Approval Greg Pscodna, Athletic Director
d. Administrative Contract Approval Laura Jacobs, Director of Business Services
e. Teacher Contract Patrick Ruszkowski
f. Shoreline Cycling Club ~ Singletrack Showdown Race Approval
g. Bid Award for Replacing Gas Storage Tanks
h. Bid Award for Fixing CBO Roof
i. Bus Purchase
j. Approval for Purchase of iPad Packages & Cases
k. Purchase of Replacement VFD’s
l. Enviro Clean Contract Renewal
m. Bid Award for Softball Field Work Diamond #3 Oriole Field
n. Administrative & Central Office, Non-Union Contracts 2022/2023
o. Final Budget Amendment for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021
p. Budget Adoption for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 (2022/2023)
q. Set July 2022 Board Meeting Date Time Place
r. West Shore Educational Service District Parent Advisory Committee Appointment 2022/2023

16. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS & ANNOUNCEMENTS
17. ADJOURNMENT

Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal business hours at the Board of

Education’s Central Business Office, 809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan. The Ludington Area School District is an equal

opportunity employer and provider. If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of special accommodations to attend or

participate in a public meeting please contact Superintendent Dr. Kyle Corlett at 231-845-7303 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting or

as soon as possible.

Page 2 of 12



Memorandum - Office of the Superintendent

 TO: Board of Education  
FROM: Dr. Kyle B. Corlett, Superintendent
RE: Budget Hearing & Regular Meeting ~ Agenda Notes

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
Review Board Policy 0167.3: Public Participation at Board Meetings

The Board of Education recognizes the value of public comment on educational issues and the importance
of allowing members of the public to express themselves on District matters.

To permit fair and orderly public expression, the Board shall provide a period for public participation at
every regular meeting of the Board and publish rules to govern such participation in Board meetings. The
rules shall be administered and enforced by the presiding officer of the meeting.

The presiding officer shall be guided by the following rules:

A. Public participation shall be permitted as indicated on the order of business, or at the discretion of
the presiding officer.

B. Participants must be recognized by the presiding officer and will be requested to preface their
comments by an announcement of their name, address, and group affiliation, if and when
appropriate.

C. Each statement made by a participant shall be limited to three (3) minutes duration.
D. No participant may speak more than once.
E. Participants shall direct all comments to the Board and not to staff or other participants.
F. The presiding officer may:

1. interrupt, warn, or terminate a participant's statement when the statement is too lengthy,
personally directed, abusive, obscene, or irrelevant;

2. request any individual to leave the meeting when that person does not observe reasonable
decorum;

3. request the assistance of law enforcement officers in the removal of a disorderly person
when that person's conduct interferes with the orderly progress of the meeting;

4. call for a recess or an adjournment to another time when the lack of public decorum so
interferes with the orderly conduct of the meeting as to warrant such action;

5. waive these rules with the approval of the Board when necessary for the protection of
privacy or the administration of the Board's business.

G. The portion of the meeting during which the participation of the public is invited shall be limited to
thirty (30) minutes, but the timeframe will be extended, if necessary, so that no one's right to
address the Board will be denied.

H. Tape or video recordings are permitted. The person operating the recorder should contact the
Superintendent prior to the Board meeting to review possible placement of the equipment, and
agrees to abide by the following conditions:

1. No obstructions are created between the Board and the audience.
2. No interviews are conducted in the meeting room while the Board is in session.
3. No commentary, adjustment of equipment, or positioning of operators is made that would

distract either the Board or members of the audience while the Board is in session.
I. Each Board agenda will include the following statement, "Public participation shall be permitted

only as indicated on the order of business.”

Revised: January 21, 2019

Legal: M.C.L.A. 15.263(4)(5)(6), 380.1808

Page 3 of 12



PUBLIC BUDGET HEARING

The Board of Education will hold a public hearing to consider the District’s proposed 2022/2023 budget.

The Board may not adopt its proposed 2022/2023 budget until after a public hearing. The property tax
millage rate proposed to be levied to support the proposed budget will be a subject of this hearing. We will
hold a public hearing prior to the regular meeting for the proposal of the 2022/2023 operating budget.
Jesse Rickard, Director of Business Services, will present to the Board. We will then adjourn the hearing
and call the regular meeting to order.

Budget Amendment for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022
Jesse Rickard will discuss the final budget amendment for the year ending June 30, 2022. The Board of
Education will be asked to approve the final budget amendment for the year ending June 30, 2022 at the
Board of Education on June 20, 2022.

Proposed Budget for 2022/2023
Jesse Rickard will present the 2022/2023 fiscal year budget in the public budget hearing to the Board on
Monday, June 20, 2021. The Board is required to approve a budget prior to June 30, 2021. The Board will
review the assumptions used to build the budget, as well as the preliminary budget build for the
2022/2023 fiscal year.

Regular Meeting
CONSENT AGENDA

Tuition Rate (Section 6 Non-Resident Students) 2022/2023

By state law, tuition cannot be charged for non-resident students under Section 105 or 105c, Schools of
Choice. However, also required by state law, tuition must be charged to non-resident students who are
released by their resident district after the Section 105 or 105c, Schools of Choice application deadline has
passed.  The non-resident tuition rate is set at $1.00. These are called Section 6 non-resident students.

Hiring Approvals
○ Gina Beck, Food Service Aide
○ Melissa Russell,  ELL Coordinator
○ Marla Sanders, LES Aide

Resignation Approvals
○ Peggy Bobrowski, LES Aide
○ Kaylyn Buckner, Food Service Aide
○ Danielle Hargett, Food Service Aide
○ Jesse Rickard, Director of Business Services

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
I’ll provide a required yearly report on bullying, our required report on NWEA testing as part of the
response to COVID, and read a letter from Dr. Jason Jeffrey, superintendent at WSESD.

Page 4 of 12



DISCUSSION ITEMS
Waiver & Consent LASD ~ Uncollectible Personal Property Tax Resolution
Carlos Alvarado will present this topic to the Board. I checked with an attorney at Thrun, who recommends
the board approve the waiver that Carlos will be presenting. Here’s the email from Thrun:

“Our firm represents several municipalities and we have filed similar pleadings on behalf of
our clients. Michigan law requires a municipality to file a lawsuit to remove personal
property taxes that they have been unable to collect. Unlike real property taxes that become a
lien on the property, personal property like computers, copiers and office equipment is
removed before a municipality can take possession of the personal property. Given the
statements from municipal treasurers, unless the District can show that the treasurers
haven’t made good faith efforts then I recommend that the District agree to waive these
uncollected personal property.”

Elementary Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #26
We will need a motion to approve the certificate for payment on the elementary school bond project and to
authorize the District to pay the certificate for payment in the amount of $52,957.26 as certified by the
architect and construction manager, and as outlined in the Certificate for Payment.

Administrative Contract Approval Greg Pscodna, Athletic Director
Greg has 12 years experience as an athletic director and many years of coaching, including high school,
Division II and Division III college football.

Administrative Contract Approval Laura Jacobs, Director of Business Services
Laura has served as the business director at Shelby Schools for 12 years and prior to that worked at
Muskegon ISD.

Teacher Contract Patrick Ruszkowski
Patrick has taught English at Chinese universities for over 10 years and has returned to Mason County
where he was born to be closer to family. He completed his student teaching practicum at Hart Schools
earlier this school year.

Shoreline Cycling Club ~ Singletrack Showdown Race Approval
The Shoreline Cycling Club would like to request use of the School Forest Trails on Saturday, Nov. 26, 2022
for their annual Singletrack Showdown mountain bike race. This year they would like to start and end the
race at the LES facility. As in past years they will provide the school with a letter of insurance coverage
with LASD as a named insured.

Bids for Replacing Gas Storage Tanks
We received three bids ranging from $332,485 to $419,698.41. Our consultant recommended the lowest
bid which was by Rohr, a contractor we regularly work with. These prices were much lower than what I
had anticipated as I thought it would be close to twice as much since we were getting two tanks.

Bids for Fixing CBO Roof & Robotics Garage Roof
The district actively sought out bids to replace the roof for the CBO and the building which houses our
robotics team. Two bids for the CBO roof and robotics garage roof were received. At The Peak Roofing LLC
submitted a bid for $98,323 and the second bid received was from Superior Exteriors in the amount of
$138,088. I recommend awarding the low bid to At The Peak Roofing LLC.

Page 5 of 12



Bus Purchases
We are seeking approval to purchase three buses with Thomas buses from Hoekstra. We chose Thomas
because they will replace the three International buses we currently have in inventory. The Internationals
are the oldest in our fleet. We obtained our quotes through the MSBO Bus Purchasing Program. Hoekstra’s
Thomas buses were $313,128, Holland Bluebird buses $314,535 and Midwest Transit International buses
$308,352. Hoekstra was not the lowest bid but they were all very close and by having all the same line of
buses it will help in the long run with parts inventory, we will only need to stock parts for Thomas buses.
We also repair Thomas buses from WSESD, MCE and Pentwater. I recommend purchasing the three
Thomas buses from Hoekstra in the amount of $313,128.

These current buses have increased in base price and surcharges since the order was placed in December.
They have gone up approximately $9,400 each as of today. We are in need of approval to secure our buses
on the assembly line.  The bus purchase is from bond funding for transportation upgrades.

Approval for Purchase of Ipads
The Ludington area school district applied for the third round of ECF funding from the federal government.
Because of the possibility of getting cellular iPads for every student, which we could not have ever afforded
with the technology bond, Jesse and I felt it was worthwhile to try to obtain these devices using the grant
funds. So if we get the grant we will get the cellular iPads with AppleCare and AppleCare approved cases.
The timing of the grant is a little tricky for us. The deadline was May 13 and we were supposed to hear in a
month. Which is soon. iPads are 5-7 weeks out, so if we get the grant we need to order them that day, in
order to receive them in time for the upcoming school year.

The quotes for devices and supplies are as follows:
● Apple Quote in the amount of $812,720 for LTE iPads with AppleCare and an integrated

keyboard case.
● Apple Quote in the amount of $458,360 for LTE iPads with AppleCare and an approved

AppleCare case
● TMobile Service for Ipads $608,832
● CDW Screen Protectors and Alternate Cases $79,475

○ Total amount requested to secure device replacement is $1,959,387

If we don't get the ECF funding the cost to refresh the district's iPads will be $785,560 for 1,600 iPads
without keyboards and 800 iPads with keyboards for the high school, and $79,475.50 for cases K-8 and
screen protectors for everyone.

By giving Dr. Corlett the authority to approve a purchase of the more expensive ECF option that will also
cover what was our primary plan before the ECF funding opportunity came along. This will be enough to
purchase iPads for the entire district, which should last five years.

Replacement VFD’s
VFD’s are Variable Frequency Drives in HVAC Systems for the controls and pumps for the heating system.
As part of the Bond project we had planned to replace the outdated VFD’s at the HS/MS complex. Recently
we had a brown out situation that caused our VFD controls and pumps to fail. We have received a quote
from ControlNET, LLC to replace these units earlier than anticipated for a total of $19,500. We are being
told that the lead time to receive these is between 26 and 35 weeks. I recommend board approval for this
quote so we can get them ordered for installation.

Page 6 of 12



EnviroClean Contract Annual Renewal
We need to approve the annual renewal for the EnviroClean contract. The main change was increasing the
starting wage to $14.00 per hour which will allow them to attract and retain a stable workforce. I
recommend approving the contract renewal.

Bids on Softball Field Work Diamond #3 Oriole Field
Upgrades to the field are to keep us in compliance with Title IX. We tried to obtain three quotes but only
received one response from Ruggles & Son Masonry for the Oriole Field Diamond #3 restoration and
renovation in the amount of $14,640. Many contractors' work schedules are at least a year out or they are
too busy. I recommend approving Ruggles & Son Masonry Quote for the work.

Administrative & Central Office, Non-Union Contracts 2022/2023
I recommend that the administrators (Dan Mesyar, Steve Forsberg, Mike Hart, Randy Fountain, Tim
Hansen, Jenn Mackey, Katie Eisinger, Abby Schaperkotter) and other central office staff/supervisors and
non-union staff (Susie Hovey, Andy Klevorn, Mary Marble, Laura Kassanos, Carrie Moeggenberg, Penny
Schultz, Deb Wilsey, Brent Gillett, Tyrone Collins, Jen Collins, Caryn Elam, Nicole Benedict) receive a one
year extension of their contracts. Salaries and benefits will be equivalent to the negotiated pay increase
established for the LEA for the 2022/2023 school year.

West Shore Educational Service District Special Education Parent Advisory Committee Appointment
2022/2023
We need to appoint our representative on the WSESD SEPAC for the 2022/2023 school year. Melissa
Mutton has volunteered to serve on the committee for our District and we are pleased to have her serve in
this capacity.

ACTION ITEMS
Waiver & Consent LASD ~ Uncollectible Personal Property Tax Resolution

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the Waiver & Consent LASD Uncollectible
Personal Property Tax Resolution as written and presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the Waiver & Consent LASD Uncollectible
Personal Property Tax Resolution as written and presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Elementary Bond Project Application and Certificate for Payment #26
Board President: We will need a motion to approve the certificate for payment on the
elementary school bond project and to authorize the District to pay the certificate for payment in the
amount of $52,957.26 as certified by the architect and construction manager, and as outlined in the
Certificate for Payment.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the certificate for payment on the elementary
school bond project and to authorize the District to pay the certificate for payment in the amount of
$52,957.26 as certified by the architect and construction manager, and as outlined in the Certificate for
Payment.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 7 of 12



Administrative Contract Approval Greg Pscodna, Athletic Director

Board President: We will need a motion to approve a three year administrative contract for
Greg Pscodna, serving as Athletic Director pending successful completion of all in service requirements
and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve a three year administrative contract for
Greg Pscodna, serving as Athletic Director pending successful completion of all in service requirements
and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Administrative Contract Approval Laura Jacobs, Director of Business Services

Board President: We will need a motion to approve a three year administrative contract for
Laura Jacobs, serving as Director of Business Services pending successful completion of all in service
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve a three year administrative contract for
Laura Jacobs, serving as Director of Business Services pending successful completion of all in service
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Teacher Contract Approval Patrick Ruszkowski

Board President: We will need a motion to approve a probationary teaching contract for
Patrick Ruszkowski serving as second grade teacher at Ludington Elementary School pending
successful completion of all in service requirements and background checks per Board Policy and
Michigan Law.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve a probationary teaching contract for Patrick
Ruszkowski serving as second grade teacher at Ludington Elementary School pending successful
completion of all in service requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan Law.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 8 of 12



Shoreline Cycling Club Singletrack Showdown Race Approval in the School Forest

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the Shoreline Cycling Club use of the School
Forest Trails on Saturday, Nov. 26, 2022 for their annual Singletrack Showdown mountain bike race.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the Shoreline Cycling Club use of the School
Forest Trails on Saturday, Nov. 26, 2022 for their annual Singletrack Showdown mountain bike race. as
presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Bid Award for Replacing Gas Storage Tanks

Board President: We need a motion to approve the bid award for the replacement of gas
storage tanks to Rohr Gasoline Equipment who had a low bid of $332,485.00 as presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the bid award for the replacement of gas
storage tanks to Rohr Gasoline Equipment who was a low bid of $332,485.00 as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Bid Award for Replacing CBO & Robotic Garage Roof

Board President: We will need a motion to award the low bid to At The Peak Roofing LLC in the
amount of $98,323 as presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to award the low bid to At The Peak Roofing LLC in the
amount of $98,323 as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Bus Purchases

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the purchase of three Thomas buses from
Hoekstra  in the amount of $313,128 as presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the purchase of three Thomas buses from
Hoekstra  in the amount of $313,128 as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 9 of 12



Approval for Purchase of iPads & Cases

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the iPad device replacement in an amount
of  $1,959,387 as presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the iPad device replacement in an amount of
$1,959,387 as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

EnviroClean Contract Annual Renewal

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the annual contract renewal for
EnviroClean as presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the annual contract renewal for EnviroClean
as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Bid Award on Softball Field Work Diamond #3 Oriole Field

Board President:

Motion by Member ___________________________,

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Administrative, Central Office & Non Union Contracts
We will need an action item to approve non-union administrative and central office contracts. The
superintendent is recommending that the administrators (Dan Mesyar, Steve Forsberg, Mike Hart, Randy
Fountain, Tim Hansen, Jenn Mackey, Katie Eisinger, Abby Schaperkotter) and other central office
staff/supervisors and non-union staff (Susie Hovey, Andy Klevorn, Mary Marble, Laura Kassanos, Carrie
Moeggenberg, Penny Schultz, Deb Wilsey, Brent Gillett, Tyrone Collins, Jen Collins, Caryn Elam, Nicole
Benedict) receive a one year extension of their contracts. Salaries and benefits will be equivalent to the
negotiated pay increase established for the LEA for the 2022/2023 school year. It is recommended that the
Board approve the contracts as presented to you. It is recommended that the Board approve the contracts
as presented to you.

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the one year extension of the
Administrative, Central Office & Non Union Contracts. Salaries and benefits will be equivalent to the
negotiated pay increase established for the LEA for the 2022/2023 school year as presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the one year extension of the Administrative,

Page 10 of 12



Central Office & Non Union Contracts. Salaries and benefits will be equivalent to the negotiated pay
increase established for the LEA for the 2022/2023 school year as presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Budget Amendment for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022
As part of our 2022/2023 Budget Hearing, a budget amendment will also be presented for the current
school year. I recommend that you approve the resolution provided to amend our 2021/2022 budgets as
discussed and presented.

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the resolution provided to amend our
2021/2022 budgets as discussed and presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the resolution provided to amend our
2021/2022 budgets as discussed and presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

2022/2023 Budget Adoption
We will share information on all of our funds at our 2022/2023 Budget Hearing on Monday. The Board is
required to approve a budget prior to June 30, 2022. I recommend that you approve the resolution
provided to establish our 2022/2023 budgets as presented and discussed.

Board President: We will need a motion to approve the 2022/2023 Budget Resolution as
written and presented.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to approve the 2022/2023 Budget Resolution as written
and presented.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Set July 2022 Board Meeting Date Time Place
We will need to set the schedule for our July meeting. It is recommended that the Board meet at 6:00 p.m.
on July 18, 2022, at 809 East Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan.

Board President: We will need a motion to set the July regular board meeting proposed for 6:00
p.m. on  July 18, 2022, at 809 East Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan.

Motion by Member ___________________________,  to set the July meeting for 6:00 p.m. on  July 18, 2022, at
809 East Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan.

Support by Member ____________________.

Page 11 of 12



VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

West Shore Educational Service District Special Education Parent Advisory Committee
Appointment 2022/2023

Board President: We will need a motion to appoint our representative on the WSESD SEPAC for
the 2022/2023 school year. Melissa Mutton has volunteered to serve on the committee for our District.

Motion by Member ___________________________, to appoint Melissa Mutton as our representative on the
WSESD SEPAC for the 2022/2023 school year.

Support by Member ____________________.
VOTE: (Y/N) Steve Carlson (Y/N) Bret Autrey (Y/N) Josh Snyder (Y/N) Mike Nagle (Y/N) Stephanie Reed

(Y/N) Leona Ashley (Y/N) Scott Foster. AYES: ______NAYES: _____  MOTION:   Passes  /  Fails.

Page 12 of 12



  
Actual Current Final Proposed

REVENUES: 2020/21 2021/22 2021/22 2021/22
Local 18,159,879         16,160,577         17,586,944         17,844,645         $435 per-pupil increase as proposed in Governor's budget
State 4,163,157           5,660,564           4,509,505           4,721,649           Assumed enrollment of 2,054 matches current year
Federal 1,543,257           3,641,313           3,418,366           3,431,185           Substantial Federal increases with ESSER 2 & 3 grants
Transfers 488,110              592,734              554,639              585,644              

Total Revenues 24,354,403         26,055,188         26,069,454         26,583,123         

    
EXPENDITURES:
Instructional Basic 11,992,922         13,053,597         12,916,040         13,854,537         Includes one additional LES teacher & ESSER funds spent on wages/benefits
Added Needs 3,413,261           4,048,551           3,941,537           3,447,369           
Pupil Support 872,623              886,027              912,854              895,483              
Instructional Support 836,467              887,496              806,781              858,646              
General Admin 453,994              469,495              526,906              471,848              
School Admin 1,689,400           1,831,732           1,903,037           1,918,448           
Business 476,440              517,912              547,375              635,875              
Operation & Maint 2,033,860           1,981,708           2,156,164           2,055,111           
Transportation 807,407              925,583              1,036,163           1,036,779           
Central Services 259,015              286,295              279,766              240,421              
Athletics 845,712              868,796              946,143              933,960              
Community Services 89,282                 120,573              112,807              125,839              
Transfers and Other (17,339)               13,011                 14,131                 7,900                   

Total Expenditures 23,753,044         25,890,776         26,099,703         26,482,216         

Excess of Revenue 601,359              164,412              (30,249)               100,907              
Over Expenditures       

Fund Balance 6/30/21 1,602,806           

Current Expected 6/30/22 1,767,218           

Final Proposedd 6/30/22 1,572,557           

Fund Balance 6/30/23 1,673,465           

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
 GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

Proposed 2021-22 Final Budget & 2022-23 Original Budget



Period: 5/12/2022 through 6/15/2022

GENERAL OPERATING FUND
Payroll 5/20/22 596,849.67       
Payroll 6/3/22 608,457.23       

Total Payroll 1,205,306.90    

Bills (5/12/22 through 6/15/22) 1,626,384.58    

2,831,691.48   
TOTAL GENERAL OPERATING FUND

 
TOTAL ATHLETIC FUND 19,786.80        
Bills (5/12/22 through 6/15/22)

TOTAL LUNCH FUND 52,232.46        
Bills (5/12/22 through 6/15/22)

GRAND TOTAL ALL FUNDS 2,903,710.74   
Bills (5/12/22 through 6/15/22)

RATIFICATION OF BILL PAYMENT

June 20, 2022



Current
Year

Assets

       Savings/Checking Accounts 214,321$             
       Investments 2,813$                 
       Taxes Receivable -$                    
       Accounts Receivable 144,667$             
       Due from Other Funds 1,899,781$          
       Due from Other Governmental Units -$                    
       Inventory -$                    
       Prepaid Expenses 201,241$             
       Other Assets -$                    

Total Assets 2,462,823$    

 Liablities and Fund Equity

Liabilities:
     Accounts Payable 9,037$                 
     Payroll Liabilities (1,672)$               
     Accrued Expenses -$                    
     Due to Other Funds 335,849$             
     Due to Other Governmental Units -$                    
     Deferred Revenue 258,810$             
     Note Payable -$                    

Total Liabilities 602,024$             

Fund Equity:
     Inventory  (Reserved) -$                    
Other Fund Balance 1,860,799$          

Total Fund Balance 1,860,799$          
  

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity 2,462,823$    

 
 

  

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
BALANCE SHEET

For the Month Ending May 31, 2022



 
 
REVENUES: Budget Year to date Balance % spent

Local 16,160,577$   17,486,955$    (1,326,378)$  108.21%
State 5,660,564$     3,524,836$      2,135,728$   62.27%
Federal 3,641,313$     387,448$         3,253,865$   10.64%
Transfers 592,734$        282,259$         310,475$      47.62%

 
Total Revenue 26,055,188$   21,681,498$    4,373,690$   83.21%

 
EXPENDITURES:

Instruction/Basic 13,053,597$   10,560,307$    2,493,290$   80.90%
      /Added Needs 4,048,551$     3,157,176$      891,375$      77.98%
Support Service/Pupil 886,027$        751,470$         134,557$      84.81%
     /Instructional 887,496$        686,268$         201,228$      77.33%
     /Gen.  Admin. 469,495$        434,124$         35,371$        92.47%
     /School Admin. 1,831,732$     1,619,588$      212,144$      88.42%
     /Business 517,912$        460,864$         57,048$        88.99%
     /Oper. & Maint. 1,981,708$     1,784,711$      196,997$      90.06%
     /Transportation 925,583$        832,777$         92,806$        89.97%
     /Central Services 286,295$        220,120$         66,175$        76.89%
     /Athletics 868,796$        799,638$         69,158$        92.04%
    /Comm Services 120,573$        116,459$         4,114$          96.59%
     /Transfers 13,011$          -$                 13,011$        0.00%

Total Expenditures 25,890,776$   21,423,502$    4,454,263$   82.75%
Excess of Revenue  
over Expenses 257,996$         

Fund Balace 6/30/21 1,602,806$     1,602,806$      
 

  
 Ending Fund Balance 1,860,802$      

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending May 30, 2022

Prepared by the Business Office



 
 
REVENUES: Budget year to date Balance % spent

Tax Revenue Sinking 373,298$        376,584$         (3,286)$         100.88%
Interest Sinking Fund 2,000$            2,009$             (9)$                100.45%
Other Income 12,970$          -$                 12,970$        0.00%
Total Revenue 388,268$        378,593$         9,675$          97.51%

EXPENDITURES:
Equipment -$                -$                 -$              0.00%
Construction Sinking 382,268$        15,752$           366,516$      4.12%
Tax Appeals 6,000$            66$                  5,934$          1.10%

Total Expense 388,268$        15,818$           372,450$      4.07%

 
Fund Balace 6/30/21 804,772$        804,772$         

 
Ending Fund Balance  1,167,547$      
 

 
 

REVENUES: Budget year to date Balance % spent
Bond Issuance 930,000$        930,000$         -$              100.00%
Interest 2,000$            840$                1,160$          42.00%
Total Revenue 932,000$        930,840$         1,160$          99.88%

EXPENDITURES:
Issuance Costs 100,000          23,377$           76,623$        8.40%
Equipment 1,151,455       61,657$           1,089,798$   0.00%
Construction 10,000            -$                 10,000$        0.00%

Total Expense 1,261,455       85,034$           1,176,421$   6.74%

Fund Balace 6/30/21 445,102$        445,102$         

 
Ending Fund Balance 1,290,908$      

 

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
Building and Site Funds

Prepared by the Business Office

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending May 30, 2022

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
Technology Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending May 30, 2022



 
 

REVENUES: Budget year to date Balance % spent
Bond Issuance 61,435,000$   60,342,055$    1,092,945$   98.22%
Interest Earnings 50,586$          52,107$           (1,521)$         103.01%
Energy Rebates -$                29,111$           
Total Revenue 61,485,586$   60,423,273$    1,062,313$   98.27%

EXPENDITURES:
Bond Issuance Costs 1,234,860       834,067$         400,793$      0.00%
Contracted Services -                  -$                 -$              0.00%
Site Improvements 1,713,292       2,243,302$      (530,010)$     0.00%
Consulting Services 1,556,389       1,131,345$      425,044$      72.69%
Legal Fees 5,000              -$                 5,000$          0.00%
Building Construction 10,413,992     5,820,605$      4,593,387$   55.89%
Building Improvements -                  503,786$         (503,786)$     
Other Expense 1,644,059$      (1,644,059)$  0.00%

Total Expense 14,923,533     12,177,164      2,746,369$   81.60%

Fund Balace 6/30/2021 14,833,103$   14,833,103$    

 
Ending Fund Balance 63,079,212$    

 

Prepared by the Business Office

LUDINGTON AREA SCHOOLS
Capital Projects Fund

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
For the Month Ending May 30, 2022



Statement Period: May 1 - May 31, 2022
Account Number: 150363.1Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series

2019
Page 3 of 9

Market Overview
Current Period Year-to-Date

Beginning Market Value  5,944,407.09  12,741,860.94

Income
Interest 1,961.66 2,822.60
Dividends 1,292.61 2,055.00

Net Contributions/Distributions
Receipts 3,375,048.83
Disbursements (3,350,593.88) (13,524,719.89)

Change in Market Value 0.00 0.00
Ending Market Value  2,597,067.48  2,597,067.48

Capital Gains
Current Period Year-to-Date

Short-term Capital Gain / (Loss) 0.00 0.00
Long-term Capital Gain / (Loss) 0.00 0.00

Asset Allocation

Account Value
Percentage Market Value

Short Term Investments 77% $1,998,167

Money Markets and Cash 23% $598,901

100% $2,597,067

0

2,750,000

5,500,000

8,250,000

11,000,000

13,750,000

16,500,000

19,250,000

22,000,000

24,750,000

27,500,000

M J J A S O N D J F M A M

Historical Value 

.

041218 2/5                    



Account Number: 150363.1Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series
2019 Statement Period: May 1 - May 31, 2022

Page 4 of 9

Portfolio(s) included in Statement
Portfolio Number: 150363.1 Portfolio Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody 2019

Transaction Summary

Income Cash Principal Cash Cost
Market Value

Including Cash
Beginning Market Value 0.00 0.00 5,944,407.09 5,944,407.09

Income
Interest 669.05 1,292.61 1,961.66
Dividends 1,292.61 1,292.61

Disbursements
Other (1,700,593.88) (1,650,000.00) (3,350,593.88)

Purchases (4,998,166.67) 4,998,166.67

Sales & Maturities 6,696,798.89 (6,696,798.89)

Ending Market Value 0.00 0.00 2,597,067.48 2,597,067.48

.

ALGPBPHMHIBMGK
APHMOGNOOBFCPK
AELCCHJGPADMJK
DDLLDDLLLLDLLL



Account Name: Ludington Area Schools Custody Series
2019

Account Number: 150363.1
Statement Period: May 1 - May 31, 2022

Page 5 of 9

Statement of Investment Position
Cost Basis Market Value Estimated

Units Description
Symbol
Cusip Unit Total Unit Total

Unrealized
Gain / (Loss)

Annual
Income

Yield
%

Short Term Investments 
2,000,000 Charlotte-Mecklenburg NC Hos Auth Tx

CP
1.00 1,998,166.67 99.91 1,998,166.67 20,278 0.98

DTD 9/27/2021 0% 6/15/2022 16085KFF1
Total Short Term Investments 1,998,166.67 1,998,166.67 0.00 20,278
Total Short Term Investments 1,998,166.67 1,998,166.67 0.00 20,278

Money Market Funds 
598,900.81 Michigan Class Cooperative 1.00 598,900.81 1.00 598,900.81 5,420 0.91

Liquid Asset SF8888741
Total Money Market Funds 598,900.81 598,900.81 0.00 5,420
Total Money Markets and Cash 598,900.81 598,900.81 0.00 5,420

Account Total 2,597,067.48 2,597,067.48 0.00 25,698

.

041218 3/5                    





Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education

Meeting Minutes May 16, 2022

This is a meeting of the Board of Education in public for the purpose of conducting the School District’s business
and is not to be considered a public community meeting.  There is a time for public participation during the
meeting as indicated on the agenda.

Mission: Ludington Area School District, in partnership with parents and community, will educate and empower
students to adapt and succeed in their future.

REGULAR MEETING
I. Call to Order & Roll Call ~The meeting was held in the Administration Office Boardroom, 809 East

Tinkham Avenue, Ludington. The meeting was called to order by Steve Carlson, Board President at six
o’clock p.m.

Members Present: Steve Carlson, Bret Autrey, Stephanie Reed, Josh Snyder,  Leona Ashley and
Scott Foster
Members Absent:  Mike Nagle

II. Pledge of Allegiance
III. Special Presentation

A. The Robotics Team gave a presentation to the Board.
B. Dan Mesyar and Steve Forsberg announced that Ludington High School received the US News
& World Report ranking as a top school again. The banner will be arriving very soon. Melanie Tomaski
and Julia Haveman were present to share Business Professionals of America success. Julia shared her
experience competing at Nationals and placed first at the competition as a freshman. She shared her
enthusiasm for the program and wants to raise awareness of the program so other students have the
opportunity to be involved in what BPA has to offer.

IV. Agenda Modification - None to report
V. Citizen Participation - One citizen addressed the Board.
VI. Consent Agenda

A. Ratification of bill payment dated May 16, 2022 was approved by consent.
B. Approval of minutes for the special, closed and regular meetings were approved by consent.
C. Hiring approvals for Ali Bach, Ashela Trevino, Jenna Keson were approved by consent.
D. Resignation acceptances for Kate Watkins, Trish Forfinski, Owen Wojcicki, Susan Filter were
approved by consent.
Motion by Snyder, supported by Reed, to approve the consent agenda as written and presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

VII. Board Committee Reports
A. Josh Snyder reported on topics from the Finance Committee meeting May 10, 2022.
B. Stephanie Reed reported on topics from the Personnel Committee meeting May 11, 2022.
C. Stephanie Reed reported on topics from the Building and Site Committee meeting May 13,
2022.

VIII. Superintendent Report and Comments
A. Martha Hamilton was presented the Soaring Oriole Award for the month of May.

IX. Discussion Items
A. The elementary bond project certificate for payment  #25 was presented.
B. Susan Shoup presented a travel request for the French class in 2023 for Paris, France.
C. Contract negotiations on the LESPA Master Bargaining Agreement were discussed.
D. Sprinkler bids for Oriole Field were shared.
E. Middle school and high school roofing bids were shared.
F. The Shoreline Cycling Club is requesting use of the school forest for their annual bike race.
G. The School of Choice window for the upcoming year was discussed with a deadline of August
26, 2022.

Page 1 of 3



Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education

Meeting Minutes May 16, 2022

H. The L-4029 Tax Rate Request Form millage rates was presented.
I. New teacher hiring recommendations were shared with the Board.
J. The quote from Mason County Road Commission to add a turn lane to Bryant Road was
presented.

X. Action Items
A. Motion by Autrey, supported by Foster, to approve the Elementary Bond Project Certificate
and Payment #25 in the amount of $619,388.88 as presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley,

Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

B. Motion by Ashley, supported by Reed, to approve the travel request for Paris, France for the
2022-2023 school year as presented by Susan Shoup. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster.

Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

C. Motion by Reed, supported by Foster, to approve and ratify the LESPA Master Bargaining
Agreement 2022-2025 as negotiated and  presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster.

Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

D. Motion by Autrey, supported by Ashley, to approve the sprinkler bid to Olson Irrigation in
the amount of $15,150 for Field 1 and $7,150 for Field 2 at Oriole Field as presented. Ayes: Carlson,

Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

E. Motion by Snyder, supported by Autrey, to approve the middle and high school addition
roofing bid award to J. Stevens Construction, a Muskegon based company  in the amount of $659,200
as presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

F. Motion by Autrey, supported by Foster, to approve the Strategic Plan 2022-2027 as
presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

G. Motion by Reed, supported by Foster, to approve the change of date for the June regular
board meeting to June 20, 2022 at 809 East Tinkham Avenue, Ludington, Michigan at 6:00 p.m. as
presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

H. Motion by Autrey, supported by Snyder, to approve School of Choice for the 2022/2023
school year with the deadline to apply by August 26, 2022 as presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed,

Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

I. Motion by Foster, supported by Autrey, to approve the L-4029 Tax Rate Request Form as
presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

J. Motion by Snyder, supported by Autrey, to approve a probationary teacher contract for
Michele Weavers teaching high school science  pending successful completion of all inservice
requirements and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan law as presented.
Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

K. Motion by Ashley, supported by Reed,  to approve a probationary teacher contract for Becca
Brink teaching second grade pending successful completion of all inservice requirements and
background checks per Board Policy and Michigan law as presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder,

Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

L. Motion by Autrey, supported by Ashley, to approve a probationary teacher contract for Lily
Bradley teaching first grade pending successful completion of all inservice requirements and
background checks per Board Policy and Michigan law as presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder,

Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

M. Motion by Snyder, supported by Autrey, to approve a probationary teacher contract for
Courtney Lambert teaching kindergarten pending successful completion of all inservice requirements
and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan law as presented.  Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed,

Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

N. Motion by Reed, supported by Ashley to approve a probationary teacher contract for Katie
Nimcheski teaching high school English pending successful completion of all inservice requirements

Page 2 of 3



Ludington Area Schools
Board of Education

Meeting Minutes May 16, 2022

and background checks per Board Policy and Michigan law as presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed,

Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

O. Motion by Snyder, supported by Ashley, to approve the quote from the Mason County Road
Commission for the turn lane work on Bryant Road as presented. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder,

Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

P. Motion by Autrey, supported by Reed, to go into closed session for the purpose of the
personnel evaluation of the Superintendent at the written request of the superintendent per MCL
15.268 Section 8(1)a. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

The Board convened in closed session at 7:00 p.m.

The Board returned to open session at 7:15. p.m.

Q. Motion by Snyder, supported by Autrey, to approve the Evaluation of the Superintendent for
the 2021-2022 school year with a Highly Effective Rating. Ayes: Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley,

Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

XI. Other Items of Business and Announcements ~ None to report.
XII. Adjournment ~ Motion by Autrey, supported by Reed, to adjourn the meeting at 7:16 p.m. Ayes:

Carlson, Autrey, Reed, Snyder, Ashley, Foster. Nayes: None. Motion: Passes  6-0.

_______________________________________________________
Michael W. Nagle, Secretary, Board of Education

Approved ______________

(Official minutes of the Ludington Board of Education are available for public inspection during normal
business hours at the Board of Education’s central business office, 809 E. Tinkham Avenue, Ludington,
Michigan. Phone 231-845-7303.) The Ludington Area School District is an equal opportunity employer and
provider.

Page 3 of 3





Annual Summer Tax Resolution

***Ludington Area School District*** (the “District”)

A regular meeting of the Board of Education (the “Board”) was held in the Ludington
Area School District Administration Office Boardroom, 809 East Tinkham Avenue, Ludington,
Michigan, within the boundaries of the District, on the 20th day of June, 2022, at six o’clock in
the p.m.

The meeting was called to order by _____________________, President.

Present: Members

Absent: Members

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ___________________
and supported by Member ____________________

WHEREAS, this Board previously adopted a resolution to impose a summer tax levy to
collect 100% of annual school property taxes, including debt service, upon property located
within the District and continuing from year-to-year until specifically revoked by the Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

1. The Board, pursuant to 1976 PA 451, as amended (the Revised School Code),
invokes for 2023 its previously adopted ongoing resolution imposing a summer tax levy of all of
annual school property taxes, including debt service, upon property located within the District
and continuing from year-to-year until specifically revoked by the Board and requests that each
city and/or township in which the District is located collect those summer taxes.

2. The Superintendent or designee is authorized and directed to forward to the
governing body of each city and/or township in which the District is located a copy of this
Board’s resolution imposing a summer property tax levy on an ongoing basis and a copy of this
resolution requesting that each such city and/or township agree to collect the summer tax levy for
2023 in the amount specified in this resolution. Such forwarding of the resolutions and the
request to collect the summer tax levy shall be performed so that they are received by the
appropriate governing bodies before January 1, 2023.

3. Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 1613(1) of the Revised School Code,
the Superintendent or designee is authorized and directed to negotiate on behalf of the District
with the governing body of each city and/or township in which the District is located for the
reasonable expenses for collection of the District’s summer tax levy that the city and/or township
may bill under MCL 380.1611 or MCL 380.1612. Any such proposed agreement shall be
brought before this Board for its approval or disapproval.



4. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

Ayes:  Members

Nays:  Members

Resolution declared adopted.

_________________________
Secretary, Board of Education

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of
***Ludington Area School District***, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes a true and
complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at a regular meeting held on June 20, 2022,
the original of which is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice
of the meeting was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act”
(Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended).

________________________
Secretary, Board of Education

2



STATE OF MICHIGAN 
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR THE COUNTY OF MASON 

In the matter of the Petition of the  Case No. 2022-           -CZ
Treasurers of Amber Township, 
City of Ludington, City of Scottville,  
Custer Township, Grant Township, 
Pere Marquette Township, and 
Sherman Township, to Strike 2016 and prior 
Delinquent Personal Property Taxes from the 
Tax Rolls  

WAIVER AND CONSENT 

NOW COMES Steve Carlson, Ludington Area School District President of the 
Board of Education and acknowledges that the Board received the 2016 and 
prior Delinquent Personal Property Tax Report, and the Statement of Attempt 
to Collect the 2016 and prior Personal Property Taxes and upon informed 
decision the Board at its regular scheduled meeting on June , 2022, 
consented to the relief requested by the Petitioners and agreed to waive notice 
of the hearing and of the entry of judgement. 

Dated , 2022 
Steve Carlson
Ludington Area School District   
Board of Education President 
















































































































